
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 

  City Council Workshop & Meeting   
  September 8, 2020 

   Agenda 
                                                                                                               
 

This City Council workshop and meeting will be conducted in Council Chambers. We encourage citizens to 
participate, attendees will gather in the Community Room and watch the livestream of the meeting.  The meeting 
will be broadcast as usual on Great Falls TV (cable channel 1302) and on the City of Auburn YouTube channel.  
 
If you are attending and wish to offer public comment during the meeting, you can walk across the hall to the 
council chambers and address the city council during the public comment session at the podium.  
 
We will continue taking public comment in writing for those who are not comfortable attending a public meeting at 
this time, please send your remarks via email to: comments@auburnmaine.gov. Your comments will be included in 
the meeting minutes.  
 

5:30 P.M.  City Council Workshop 

A. Comprehensive Plan Update – Eric Cousens and Justin Poirier (30 minutes) 
B. City Charter Review – Phil Crowell, Michael Malloy and Sue Clements-Dallaire (30 minutes) 
C. Police Body Camera’s – Jason Moen (30 minutes)  

 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Boss 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or a citizen so requests, in 
which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence 
on the Agenda.  

 
1. Order 99-09082020 * 

Accepting the Assistance to Firefighter’s Grant Award. 
 

II.          Minutes  

• August 17, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
 
III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

• November 3, 2020 Election Communication Plan – Liz Allen, Rosemary Mosher, and Sue Clements-
Dallaire 

• Covid-19, Grab and Go Program, and Recovery Update – Matt Fifield, Sabrina Best and Marc Gosselin 

• Council Communications (about and to the community) 
 
IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

City business or any item that does not appear on the agenda.   

 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCn4hg3vz0ftbcLee4mz-1Dw/featured
mailto:comments@auburnmaine.gov


 

Page 2 of 2 

 

                    
V. Unfinished Business - None 
 
VI. New Business  

 
2. Order 100-09082020 Public hearing and vote 

Approving the Special Amusement and Liquor License for Martindale, LLC., DBA Martindale Country Club 
located at 527 Beech Hill Road (new ownership). 
 

3. Order 101-09082020  
Approving the proposed amendments to the Lewiston Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority (LAWPCA) 
Compost Facility agreement. 
 

4. Order 102-09082020 Public Hearing and First Reading 
Approving the discontinuance of Butler Hill Road. 
 

5. Order 103-09082020  
Appointing two Councilors to participate in the work group to create a Request for Proposal (RFP) study of 
Lake Auburn.  
 

6. Order 104-09082020  
Appointing two Councilors to participate on the Comprehensive Plan Review Committee.  
 

VII. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 
City business or any item that does not appear on the agenda.   
 

VIII. Reports (from sub-committees to council) 
a. Mayor’s Report  
b. City Councilors’ Reports   
c. City Manager Report  

VIII.      Executive Session – Economic development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Sec. 405 (6)(C) 

 
X. Adjournment 
 
 



 
 
 

 

City of Auburn 

City Council Information Sheet 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 

 

Author:  Megan Norwood, City Planner II 

 

Subject:  Comprehensive Plan Update 

 

Information:  At the August 3, 2020 meeting, the City Council discussed the Comprehensive Plan update 

process and responded to the correspondence provided by the Planning Board. There were two additional topics 

discussed by the City Council to be included in the update process: Equity (researching to see if anything in the 

Comprehensive Plan currently promotes inequity in the City) and Fragmentation/Gateways (looking at the 

proposed Future Land Use Map for access points to the City and their designated zoning to reduce 

fragmentation in the City). The Planning Board added one more topic to the list at their August 11th meeting to 

see if a reduction in the number of Future Land Use Zoning Districts is feasible.  

 

Staff prepared the attached Comprehensive Plan 2020 Workgroup document which lays out the duties and 

responsibilities of the Ad-Hoc Committee, lists the known issues in the Comprehensive Plan and the Committee 

Member Composition.  

 

Staff has prepared a map to present at the meeting that will review the current Ag-Zone lands proposed in the 

Future Land Use Plan to be converted to developable areas.  

 

The City Council also asked for areas in which the ADAPT plan conflicts with or is referenced in the 

Comprehensive Plan. Included as an attachment is a summary of where these references are and what they 

mean. There are very limited references to the ADAPT plan that were carried forward in the Comprehensive 

Plan and most of it was replaced by the current Comp Plan and New Auburn Master Plan; Those elements 

carried forward have been completed.  To end confusion between the two we will ask for a formal recognition 

that the ADAPT plan has been replaced by the more recent plans.  

 

City Budgetary Impacts:  Update discussed at the May 4, 2020 meeting: An estimated 290 hours of Staff time 

and $19,000.  Information/correspondence provided by the Planning Board: An estimated 80 hours of Staff time 

plus public meetings with Council, Planning Board and topic specific existing Committees (Conservation, 

Agriculture, Recreation, Economic Development, etc.) 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Review and discuss any amendments to the Draft Comprehensive Plan Ad-Hoc 

Committee, Review areas recommended in the Future Land Use Plan to be changed from Ag to developable 

land and determine if the Update Committee and Planning board should consider additional areas that should be 

added.  

 

Previous Meetings and History: 2020 Budget and CIP Process, May 4, 2020 Meeting to discuss the 

Comprehensive Plan Update, August 3, 2020 City Council Workshop, August 17, 2020 City Council Workshop 

– Form Based Code Presentation.  

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

City Manager Comments:  

 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    

 

Attachments:  

*Adapt Plan References in Comprehensive Plan  

*Comprehensive Plan Ad-Hoc Committee Formation, Duties, Responsibilities  



City of Auburn, Maine 

Economic & Community 

Development 
60 Court Street  |  Auburn, Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov  |   207.333.6601 

 
 

To: Auburn City Council 

From: Megan Norwood, City Planner II 

Re:        ADAPT Plan References in the Comprehensive Plan 

Date: August 17, 2020 

 

 

The current Comprehensive Plan from 2010 references the ADAPT plan (Auburn Downtown 

Master Plan) from 1998 in the following three locations:  

 

1. Downtown Development Policy Goals:  

Goal I.1:  A vibrant downtown that attracts and retains a variety of businesses.  

Objective I.1.1: Attract and retain a wide range of small and medium size businesses to 

the Auburn and New Auburn downtowns that promote and enhance a vibrant urban 

environment. 

Strategy I.1.1.c: Continue efforts to implement the ADAPT plan, including the 

expansion of the defined Downtown TIF District to include the New Auburn Village 

Center District, as a means of generating funds for the implementation of the New 

Auburn Master Plan. 

 

2. Implementation Strategy: 

Policy Reference: Ch1‐I.1.1.c  

Activity: Economic development – implement the ADAPT Plan and include New 

Auburn in Downtown TIF District  

Primary Responsibility: City Manager & Council 

 

3. C.3 New Auburn Business Districts:  

Objective 1: The New Auburn Business Districts are revitalized. 

Short Term Strategy: Seek out funding to undertake a New Auburn Village Center 

District Revitalization Plan that will focus specifically on developing the economic 

strategies necessary to support growth and development in the area. As part of this work: 

- If New Auburn cannot be officially identified as an independent downtown, expand the 

Auburn ADAPT boundary to include the New Auburn Village Center District thereby 

incorporating the area into the City’s Downtown TIF District. 

 

 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Economic & Community Development 
Eric Cousens, Interim Director 
60 Court Street  |  Auburn, Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov  |   207.333.6601 

 

 

DATE: 8/7/2020 

COMMITTEE INFORMATION SHEET: Comprehensive Plan Update Workgroup 2020 
 

Duties of the Committee:  
Auburns current Comprehensive plan was adopted on April 19, 2011 and although it 
has been periodically updated to address changing circumstances there are several 
areas that have been identified as in need of reconsideration.  This workgroup will 
convene at least monthly between September 2020 and July 2021 to review topics 
identified by the Planning Board and Council, identify solutions and make 
recommendations on challenges and opportunities. The duties of the workgroup 
involve consulting and offering advice to the Planning Board and City Council 
throughout the process and offering as a deliverable, a report on the known issues 
and associated recommendations. 

Topics for Consideration: 
1. Future Land Use Map – Potential Turnpike Exit near 136 and/or South Main 

Street. 
 

2.  Future Land Use Map – Industrial Transition Zone near Broad and South 
Witham Road.  Council, Planning Board, Staff and Landowners have 
considered this as a potential residential growth area that would require less 
infrastructure than an industrial change. Easy Turnpike access from Exit 75.  
  

3. Future Land Use Map – Consider expanded downtown form-based code to 
reduce setbacks and density limitations in urban neighborhoods.  Ensure 
consistency with existing development patterns or forge new direction in 
certain areas.   

  
4. Recreation and River Access.  Review status, identify opportunities, needs and 

update implementation plans.  Include recreation open space priorities, 



Page 2 of 4 

 

resource access and policy towards subdivision requirements that currently 
pose a challenge to urban developments.    

 
5. Future Land Use Map – Downtown. Review current tasks, progress to date and 

adjust policy as needed with a focus on walkability, livability and economic 
expansion opportunities.  

 
6. Equity - Researching to see if anything in the Comprehensive Plan currently 

promotes inequity in the City. 
 

7. Gateways/Fragmentation - Looking at the proposed Future Land Use Map for 
access points to the City and their designated zoning to reduce fragmentation 
in the City.  

 
8. Future Land Use Plan/Map - Review to see if a reduction in the number of 

proposed Zoning Districts is feasible. 
 
Responsibilities of Members: 

1. Commit to constructive discussion and active listening to other committee 
members and the public. 
 

2. To attend meetings regularly or notify the Chairperson or Staff in advance of 
absence.  
 

3. To carefully consider equity among all Auburn residents, property owners and 
businesses as recommendations are formed.  
 

4. To adequately review information and prepare for all meetings. 
 

5. To treat other board members and the public with respect. 
 
Position Title:  
Comprehensive Plan Update Workgroup 2020 Member 
 
Selection:  
Appointments made by the City Council 
 
Term:  
10+/- month period until report is complete. 



Page 3 of 4 

 

 
Accountable to:  
Auburn City Council 

Time Commitment: 
Meetings will generally be held monthly at Auburn City Hall or another location 
determined by the committee. Meetings should normally take 1-3 hours. Special 
presentations and public meetings may be held by the group throughout the year 
and may substitute for that month’s committee meeting. Members also need to take 
time to understand the zoning ordinance and Comprehensive Plan as they relate to 
the update topics.  The Council intends to select members that have experience with 
the current Comprehensive and Strategic Plans or related knowledge.   
 
Qualifications: 
Members should have general interest in the planning and development of the City. 
Members should also have the ability to take a broad view of the needs of the 
community as a whole and listen to public feedback. Above all, potential members 
need to possess the time to attend 1, and occasionally 2 meetings per month and a 
willingness to be an engaged and active member for approximately 10 months. 
Additional meetings may be necessary depending on workload. 
 
Workgroup Membership: 

• 2 Planning Board Members 

• 2 City Councilors 

• Mayor 

• School Board Member 

• 3 legacy members of the 2010 Comprehensive Plan Committee (Council may 
substitute other community members if needed to achieve an odd number of 
total members for voting purposes) 

A Committee Chair shall be selected from the members in one of the following 
ways: 
1. Appointment by the Planning Board of Chair OR 
2. Planning Board recommendation of chair and City Council appointment 

The appointed Chair should understand the multistep process of updating the 
Comprehensive Plan and that changes go before the Planning Board and City Council 
and State of Maine for final approval.  



Page 4 of 4 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   September 8, 2020 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  City Charter Review 
 
Information:  The current City Charter was adopted in 2005. Section 2.8 -Review of Charter and ordinances states: The 
city council shall provide for the review of the city’s charter and ordinances in their entirety at least once every 15 years. 
 
The Charter does not state anything about establishing a Charter Commission to make changes. Establishing a Charter 
Commission opens up the Charter in its entirety and could potentially be repealed and replaced and possibly ending up 
with a different form of government.  
 
Council does have the option of creating a Charter Study Committee or a Charter Review Committee and amend 
sections of the Charter by Order of the Council. Amendments would have to go before the voters at an upcoming 
election.   
 
If making revisions to the Charter, a Charter Commission would be necessary, however a Charter Commission would not 
be necessary to make amendments to the Charter.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts:   
 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The current City Charter was adopted in 2005. On July 15, 2013, a Council workshop was 
held for discussion and the consideration of a Charter Commission. On 1/12/2014, a motion to approve the 
establishment of a Charter Commission for the purpose of revising the City Charter failed 0-7. It was discussed again at a 
Council workshop on June 24, 2019, and on July 1, 2019 a Resolve supporting the formation of a Charter Review Ad-hoc 
Committee failed 2-5. It was discussed again on March 2, 2020 during a Council workshop with future direction to be 
provided by the City Council.   
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:    
 

Attachments:  
 
 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020    
 
Author:  Chief Jason Moen 
 

Subject:  Body Camera Discussion 
 
Information:  In FY22, the Department is scheduled to move forward with Body Camera implementation for all 54 
officers. This represents a substantial step towards maintaining the transparent relationship we have with our 
community.  

A comprehensive policy will be established to provide guidelines on camera activation, video retention, video redaction 
and dissemination of video. 

The body camera system will be interoperable with the in-car camera system purchased in the FY21 CIP Budget. Both 
systems are cloud based, reducing hardware costs. 

This project aligns with the President Obama’s Task Force on 21st Century Policing recommendations. 

 
 

City Budgetary Impacts:   
$277,000 in FY22 CIP Budget 

 
Staff Recommended Action: No action needed at this time. 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:       
 

Attachments:  
 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020  Order: 99-09082020 
 
Author:  Robert Chase, Fire Chief 
 

Subject:  Assistance to Firefighters Grant Award Acceptance. 
 
Information: The Fire Department applied for and has been awarded an Assistance to Firefighters grant.  The grant was 
written to improve Firefighter wellness.  Cancer and heart disease are the top two causes of death among firefighters, 
and firefighters are almost twice as likely to contract some cancers then the general population. 
 
The grant addresses these concerns on multiple fronts.  A portion of the grant will pay for advanced Physical Exams and 
Health screenings in compliance with National Fire Protection Standards. 
 
The grant also funds a series of cancer screenings for the cancers most prevalent in firefighters. 
 
Lastly, approximately $43,000 of the grant will be used to purchase and install two gear washers.  These washers will 
give us the cleaning capacity to ensure that every firefighter’s gear can be cleaned of harmful carcinogens after each fire.   
 
The total cost of the project as described above is $111,630.   
 
$101,481.82 is funded by federal grant dollars 
 
The City’s required local match to the federal contribution is $10,148.18.  No additional funding allocation is needed.  
The local grant match is funded in the FY 21 Fire department budget.  The department budget includes $14,000 for 
employee physicals and OSHA required medical clearance exams.  The advanced medical screenings conducted with this 
grant will exceed all these requirements, therefore these funds can be applied to the local funding requirement. 
 
  
 
City Budgetary Impacts:  No additional funding required.  Local grant match is funded in the FY 21 Fire Department 
Budget. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Accept the grant 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.   Signature:                                                                             
 

Attachments:  
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three                             Katherine E. Boss, At Large 
Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 99-09082020 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby accepts the Assistance to Firefighter’s Grant Award in the 
amount of $101,481.82, with the City’s required local match to the federal contribution being $10,148.18 which 
is already funded in the FY 21 Fire Department budget. No additional funding is needed.   

 









 

Akgkhj ÂÅ� ÃÁÃÁ 

 

Deag Masog Lepehfke� Akbkgn Cijs Cokncil� and Aggickljkge Commijjee� 

 

The Leadh of jhe Local Foodh� Local Placeh ¥LFLP¦ Commknijs Acjion Plan age qgijing jodas qijh 

geflecjionh fgom jhe Akbkgn Cijs Cokncil meejing fgom Jkls ÃÁ� ÃÁÃÁ� We qokld like jo begin bs 

erjending okg ggajijkde and appgeciajion jo jhe honogable Masog and Cokncilogh fog jheig concegned 

ajjenjion and jhokghjfkl dialogke gegagding food accehh and food�bahed bkhinehheh qijhin Akbkgn� The 

cgeajion of jhe Aggickljkge Commijjee� jhe gecenj qogk on aggickljkge voning� and jhe jime dedicajed 

jhgokgh qogkhhoph and cokncil agendah age epidence of jhe impogjance jhaj food and fagm�bahed 

bkhinehheh hold jo Akbkgn gehidenjh and elecjed officialh�  

 

Ah qijnehheh jo jhehe hjeph� and fgom pagjicipajion in jhe LFLP jqo�das qogkhhop fgom Akbkgn 

gehidenjh� bkhinehh oqnegh� and cijs hjaff� qe age alho ggajefkl fog jhe gemindeg jhaj jhege ih ggeaj 

pagiejs in jhe pgocehh and appgoach jaken bs jhe mans mknicipalijieh inpolped in jhe ggeajeg 

Akbkgn�Leqihjon food hshjem� We gecognive hoq jhe mknicipalijs�led appgoach of Akbkgn addh palke jo 

okg hhaged goalh � a pibganj local food hshjem jhaj ggoqh jhe local economs and incgeaheh accehh jo 

good food� We look fogqagd jo pgoggehhing jhe goalh of jhe LFLP Plan qijh jhe Aggickljkge Commijjee ah 

appgopgiaje� and in pagjneghhip qijh jhe mans fagmegh� bkhinehheh� and commknijs leadegh deepls 

engaged in jhe food�bahed economs qho qogk and�og lipe in Akbkgn�  

 

Shokld ij be of fkjkge injegehj� qe qokld be ercijed jo qogk alonghide Akbkgn gehidenjh and jhe cijs in 

depeloping jheig oqn cijs�qide food acjion plan ah ojheg cijieh hape done� Aljhokgh LFLP Acjion Planh 

age liping dockmenjh� jhes age jspicalls noj aljeged afjeg jhes hape been depeloped bs jhe commknijs� 

LFLP Planh hape� hoqepeg� hegped ah inhpigajion fog ojheg planning pgocehheh� Fog erample� in Magch� 

ÃÁÃÁ� jhe cijs of Phoenir appgoped a cijs�qide food acjion plan  qhich qah infogmed bs jhe impogjanj 

food accehh ihhkeh gaihed bs gehidenjh and adpocajeh qho pagjicipajed in jhe Sokjh Phoenir LFLP 

qogkhhop jqo seagh pgiog� 

 

Recogniving jhe abope� qe gehpecjfklls gehcind okg gefkehj fog Cokncil acjion on Ogdeg ÉÁ�ÁÈÃÁÃÁÃÁ� 

We age encokgaged bs jhe alignmenj of jhe LFLP goalh qijh jhe Aggickljkge Commijjee�h pgiogijieh� and 

look fogqagd jo jhe mans qash qe can qogk jogejheg qijh jhe commijjee� fagmegh� and food�bahed 

bkhinehheh jo achiepe a pibganj economs� 

 

Sincegels� 

 

 

Jklia Hagpeg� on behalf of jhe Good Food Cokncil of Leqihjon�Akbkgn  

² The Leadh of jhe Local Foodh Local Placeh Acjion Plan  

 

 

Fog moge infogmajion abokj LFLP� pleahe hee jhe ajjached FAQh� and jhe fkll LFLP Acjion Plan aj� 

goodfoodÅla�ogg�gehokgceh�lflp�acjion�plan 

https://www.phoenix.gov/oep/food-systems/2025-phoenix-food-action-plan?fbclid=IwAR0BXOBuXP5bICQdE_a6lE_fFb8X9twscckZ52KZ_k2Hb-GkzNlmm5RYEJg
https://goodfood4la.org/resources/lflp-action-plan/


Frequently Asked Questions 

Local Foods, Local Places Community Action Plan for Lewiston-Auburn 

2020 

 

 

Whaj ih jhe LFLP Commknijs Acjion Plan for 

Leqihjon�Akbkrn� 

 

The Local Foods, Local Places (LFLP) Community 

Action Plan is a: 

● PLAN to help strengthen the local food 

system and local economy across the region 

that consists of 4 goals and 16 action steps  

● GUIDE  to support and inform other local 

food and local economic activities for 

Auburn-Lewiston 

● TOOL that can be used to leverage 

resources to support implementation of the 

LFLP actions and/or related local food and 

agriculture initiatives and activities  

The Goalh of jhe LFLP Acjion Plan are� 

1. Strengthen Access To Local Food While Expanding Market Opportunities and 

Infrastructure for Farm and Food Businesses.  

2. Integrate Local Food and Agriculture into City Planning and Economic Development 

Strategies. 

3. Build Food and Agriculture as a Defining Brand for Lewiston-Auburn. 

4. Increase Equitable Access, Ownership, and Preservation of Land to Grow Food in 

Lewiston-Auburn. 

Hoq qah jhe Plan Creajed� 

● The LFLP Community Action plan was drafted by over É0 participants from business, 

farming, education, municipal, social service, and other sectors across Lewiston-Auburn. 

● The Plan was drafted during a two-day community workshop that took place in Oct 201Ê  

● The LFLP Plan was made possible by an Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 

technical assistance Local Foods, Local Places (LFLP) Program grant awarded to the St. 

Mary’s Nutrition Center in 201Ê. The process and completion of the Plan was led by a 

steering committee of community stakeholders and with support from the EPA. 

● Local Foods Local Places Program aims to further capitalize on L-A’s unique 

characteristics as an urban hub with significant access to farms and farmland to create 

To read jhe fkll Plan pihij� goodfoodÃla�org�rehokrceh�lflp�acjion�plan                                         1 

https://www.epa.gov/smartgrowth/local-foods-local-places
https://www.epa.gov/smartgrowth/local-foods-local-places
https://goodfood4la.org/resources/lflp-action-plan/


Frequently Asked Questions 

Local Foods, Local Places Community Action Plan for Lewiston-Auburn 

2020 

 

vibrant communities and opportunities for local farmers and food businesses, and 

create greater access to healthy food. 

 

Whaj ih jhe jimeline for jhe Plan and can ij be changed� 

● The Plan is expected to have a life of about 3-5 years. 

● Although LFLP Action Plans are living documents, they are typically not altered after 

they have been developed by the community. 

● LFLP Plans have, however, served as inspiration for other planning processes. For 

example, in March, 2020, the city of Phoenix approved a city-wide food action plan 

which was informed by the important food access issues raised by residents and 

advocates who participated in the South Phoenix LFLP workshop two years prior. 

Hoq ih jhe Plan being Implemenjed� 

● The 16 action steps are being pursued by different Action Teams made up of community 

residents and stakeholders from different sectors.  

● Each team has one or more Lead; Leads were first identified at the community 

workshop in October 201Ê. 

● The implementation of the actions in the plan are designed to be participatory and 

collaborative, and the addition of voices and resources as implementation continues are 

welcome.  

● The overall Implementation Phase of the Plan, including support for Leads and Action 

Teams, is being coordinated by staff of the Good Food Council of Lewiston-Auburn, 

working closely with a small Coordinating Team. 

Whaj�h happening righj noq qijh jhe plan� 

Some of the actions are already underway!  As of March, 2020, eight of the sixteen actions in 

the LFLP Action Plan are either in progress or in early stages. 

Hoq can I hkpporj jhe LFLP Acjion Plan� 

1. Read Û share the LFLP Action Plan 

2. Join the email list here  - we’ll be in touch with at least quarterly updates about progress 

on the plan, and various opportunities to get involved 

 

 

 

 

 
To read jhe fkll Plan pihij� goodfoodÃla�org�rehokrceh�lflp�acjion�plan                                         2 

https://www.phoenix.gov/oep/food-systems/2025-phoenix-food-action-plan?fbclid=IwAR0BXOBuXP5bICQdE_a6lE_fFb8X9twscckZ52KZ_k2Hb-GkzNlmm5RYEJg
https://goodfood4la.org/resources/lflp-action-plan/
https://goodfood4la.org/resources/lflp-action-plan/


Frequently Asked Questions 

Local Foods, Local Places Community Action Plan for Lewiston-Auburn 

2020 

 

Who can I conjacj qijh qkehjionh� 

 

The overall Implementation Phase of LFLP Action Plan is being coordinated by staff of the Good 

Food Council of Lewiston-Auburn, working closely with a small Coordinating Team. 

 

Questions about the specific actions in the plan can be directed to individuals listed as Leads in 

the Action plan (Actions and Leads are found on pages Ê-2É of the LFLP Action Plan ). All other 

questions can be directed to Julia Harper, Coordinator for the Good Food Council of 

Lewiston-Auburn, at 20È-464-4É00 or goodfood4la@gmail.com  

 

To read jhe fkll Plan pihij� goodfoodÃla�org�rehokrceh�lflp�acjion�plan                                         3 

https://goodfood4la.org/resources/lflp-action-plan/
mailto:goodfood4la@gmail.com
https://goodfood4la.org/resources/lflp-action-plan/


City of Auburn, Maine 

Recreation & Sports Tourism  
Marc Gosselin, Executive Director  

Sabrina Best, Recreation Director 

48 Pettengill Park Road  |  Auburn, Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov  |   207.333.6601 

 

 

Date: September 2, 2020 

RE: Grab ‘N Go Grocery Program Update 

 

 

The Auburn Recreation department, with support from PAL and local businesses, have been 

operating a food program since mid March. The program has evolved from Hot Meals to a once 

a week Grocery Box pick-up for any Auburn household in need. Currently the GNG Grocery 

program is operating in the following capacities: 

- The Auburn Senior Community Center is the primary location for storing and 

distribution of the groceries. The Center has been divided into two rooms with the 

larger banquet side housing over 10 frig/freezers, dry goods, and the 150 boxes that 

are weekly packed for pick-up/delivery. Recently staff has relocated the food to the 

smaller side to allow for larger group sizes for senior programs and city meetings.   

- Every Wednesday over 100 families pick up their boxes between 12-5pm while the 

rest are delivered throughout the week.  

- Combined with PAL Families, the program is currently serving a total of 154 Auburn 

Households for a total of 445 individuals.   

- Of the individuals being served 108 are over the age of 50.  

- Of the 445 individuals, roughly 175 are PAL families and 270 are enrolled thru the 

Rec.  

- The Good Food Shepard has waived their fee’s for food over the summer but will 

start charging again on September 1.  

- The numbers have increased since the beginning of June as some families benefits or 

subsidy programs have been discontinued. There has been a handful of families that 

have been removed from the list due to going back to work or moving.  

- Currently working on installing a walk-in Frig/Freezer combo at the PAL center by 

end of October the latest.  

- Advocating for an Expansion Project of the PAL Center that would include a Food 

Pantry area.  

 

The current format of this program ended on Wednesday Sept 2, staff has put together two 

options on how best to move forward with the program. Staff did inform the participants of the 



Page 2 of 3 

 

end of the program and collected self-certified applications in case the program continues and 

is only offered to qualifying households.    

 

OPTION A – Continue the program but change the location, qualifications, and format   

- All participants will need to qualify under the CDBG income limits to use the funding 

from CDBG for the purchasing of food when the Good Food Shepard starts charging 

Sept 1. This should eliminate those households that are using this program out of 

convenience vs. need.  

- No longer offer a once a week pick-up option, instead GNG Groceries would be 

delivered to all participants. This will help eliminate the need to ‘pack’ up on food for 

the one day unload and help spread staff time out across the week. This will also 

eliminate the need to set-up 150 boxes in a space resulting in the need of less space 

to operate.  

- Would look to add 1-3 volunteers to help deliver the groceries throughout the week 

again cutting down the amount of staff needed to operate.   

- Once the PAL frig/freezer is installed and the activity space is cleaned out, relocate 

the ‘food pantry’ over to the PAL Center completely (unless there is a need to use the 

frig/freezers at the Senior Center).  

- The Grocery program would not be actively advertised but rather offered to the 

current users and occasionally a family or individual that needs just a once a month 

grocery box.  

- If this option is chosen staff is prepared to begin the week of Sept 14.  

- Staff would establish a set amount to be spent each week on food top ensure the 

long term continuation of the program.  

 

OPTION B – Continue the program for PAL families ONLY    

- End the GNG Grocery program for the Rec enrolled individuals (270) on Sept 2.  

- PAL participants will need to qualify under the CDBG income limits to use the 

funding from CDBG for the purchasing of food when the Good Food Shepard starts 

charging Sept 1. This should eliminate those households that are using this program 

out of convenience vs. need.  

- Groceries would continue to be delivered to PAL families (as Shawn does his weekly 

wellness checks on the kids).  

- We would still need to hold the food pantry in the Senior Center until PAL was ready 

with the walk-in frig/freezer and cleaned out activity space to make space for the 

program.  



Page 3 of 3 

 

- Once the PAL frig/freezer is installed and the activity space is cleaned out, relocate 

the ‘food pantry’ over to the PAL Center completely (unless there is a need to use the 

frig/freezers at the Senior Center).  

- Rec staff would only assist if there is a big food pick-up at the Good Shepard. Shawn 

would continue this program as the PAL center cannot open for indoor programming 

due to space limits.  

 

Both options would continue to utilize Shawn as the lead programmer, if program continues to 

REC and PAL participants there would be a need for 1-2 part time staffers and 1-3 volunteer 

drivers. Both options would operate towards the end goal of having the food pantry located at 

the PAL which is anticipated to happen by the end of October. Both options would utilize 

funding from CDBG and require participants to qualify under the HUD guidelines.  

  

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Sabrina Best, Recreation Director 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020  
 
Author:  Liz Allen, Director of Communications & Community Engagement  
 

Subject:  2020 General (Presidential) Election Communications Plan 
 
Information:  Workshop presentation regarding the November 3 election and steps that Team Auburn is taking to 
communicate with residents and promote new voting locations, voter registration, absentee voting and safe in-person 
voting. Communications staff will discuss election timeline and demonstrate new “Auburn Elections & Voting Hub.” 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:    None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  None 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:   
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:   
 

Attachments:  None   
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020                 Order: 100-09082020 
 

Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  Liquor License & Special Amusement Permit request for Martindale, LLC. D/B/A Martindale Country 
Club  
 

Information:  Martindale, LLC. D/B/A Martindale Country Club, an existing business, located 527 Beech Hill 
Road, is under new ownership and they’ve applied for a Liquor License and Special Amusement Permit. Police, 
Fire, Finance and Code have granted approval. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Public hearing and motion to approve the liquor license and special amusement 
permit. 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.    Signature:                     
 

Attachments:  

• Application 

• Public Notice 

• Order  
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three                             Katherine E. Boss, At Large 
Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 100-09082020 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the liquor license and Special Amusement 
Permit for Martindale, LLC. D/B/A Martindale Country Club located at 527 Beech Hill Road.  

 

 



CITY OF AUBURN 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 
 

A public hearing will be held on Tuesday, September 8, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. or 

as soon as possible thereafter, in the Council Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 

Court Street, to consider the Special Amusement and Liquor License 

Application for: 

 

Martindale, LLC, D/B/A Martindale Country Club 

527 Beech Hill Road, Auburn, Maine  

 

All interested persons may appear or provide written comment to show 

cause, if any they may have, why this license should not be granted. Written 

comments may be submitted via email to: comments@auburnmaine.gov 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:comments@auburnmaine.gov






































 
 
 

 

City of Auburn 

City Council Information Sheet 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020  Order: 101-09082020 

 

Author:  Megan Norwood, City Planner II 

 

Subject:  Lewiston Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority Agreement Change 

 

Information:  The Lewiston Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority (LAWPCA) is the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant servicing Lewiston and Auburn located on Penley Corner Road. The facility has been in 

operation since 1993. Overtime, with technology and regulatory changes, the facility has had to adapt and 

recently completed a pilot project with the Maine DEP from September of 2019 to January of 2020 to evaluate 

operating with composting LAWPCA produced, anaerobically digested solids, with no odor control system. The 

pilot project was successful and LAWPCA secured approval to operate that way from DEP in June of 2020.  

 

The approval was granted in the form of approved license amendments, which also require amendments to City 

agreements and Planning Board approvals. The main changes include: Operating the facility with less volume, 

using material derived only from the LAWPCA treatment facility and eliminating an odor mitigation system. 

LAWPCA is seeking approval from the City Council and Planning Board for these changes. At the May 18, 

2020 City Council workshop, the City Council was comfortable dissolving the City agreement and allowing 

LAWPCA to operate under the conditions of the Planning Board agreement.  

 

The Planning Board will be reviewing the proposed changes to the agreement at their September 15, 2020 

meeting. 

 

City Budgetary Impacts:  None. 

 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Discussion and Council approval of amended agreement.  

 

 

Previous Meetings and History: May 18, 2020 Council Workshop.  

 

 

City Manager Comments:  

 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:   

 

Attachments: Planning Board Staff Report, September 15, 2020   



City of Auburn, Maine 

Economic & Community Development 
60 Court Street  |  Auburn, Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov  |   207.333.6601 

 

To:  Auburn Planning Board 

From:  Megan Norwood, City Planner II 

Re:  Lewiston Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority (LAWPCA) proposal to change current City 

  Agreements and 1992 Planning Board Approvals after a successful pilot project with the Maine  

  DEP to evaluate how the facility may be operated with composting only LAWPCA-produced,  

  anaerobically digested solids with no odor control system. The changes proposed do not include  

  changes to the originally approved Site Plan but do include: Operating the facility with less  

  volume, using material derived only from the LAWPCA treatment facility and eliminating an  

  odor mitigation system that has impacted groundwater at the facility, located at    

  230 Penley Corner Road, PID: 137-032 in the Agriculture and Resource Protection Zoning  

  District.  

Date:  September 15, 2020 

 

 

I. PROPOSAL: The Lewiston Auburn 

Water Pollution Control Authority 

(LAWPCA) is the Wastewater Treatment 

Plant servicing Lewiston and Auburn 

located on Penley Corner Road. The 

facility has been in operation since 1993. 

Overtime, with technology and regulatory 

changes, the facility has had to adapt and 

recently completed a pilot project with the 

Maine DEP from September of 2019 to 

January of 2020 to evaluate operating with 

composting LAWPCA produced, 

anaerobically digested solids, with no odor 

control system. The pilot project was 

successful and LAWPCA secured 

approval to operate that way from DEP in 

June of 2020.  

 

The approval was granted in the form of 

approved license amendments, which also require amendments to City agreements and Planning Board 

approvals. The main changes include: Operating the facility with less volume, using material derived only 

from the LAWPCA treatment facility and eliminating an odor mitigation system. LAWPCA is seeking 

approval from the City Council and Planning Board for these changes. At the May 18, 2020 City Council 

workshop, the City Council was comfortable dissolving the City agreement and allowing LAWPCA to 

operate under the conditions of the Planning Board agreement.  

 

As part of the Planning Board approval, LAWPCA is seeking to have the agreements consolidated. 

Included in the Planning Board packets for this month is a marked up Planning Board approval that 

summarizes all of this information into one document. On the first page, it updates the findings to include 

a 2020 approval based on operational history, requested changes and participation by the City Manager on 

the LAWPCA Board of Directors, providing the City with additional capacity to monitor the ongoing 

activities at LAWPCA.  



Page 2 of 4 

 

 

Municipal Wastewater Sewerage Sludge Facilities are permitted in the Ag-Zone, provided the following 

conditions are met:  

A. All compost and amendments are to be stored undercover or screened from the public 

way and abutting property as determined by the Planning Board. 

B. All federal, state and local ordinances and laws relating to the processing and storage 

of waste are complied with. 

C. An end-use plan must be filed as part of the Planning Board process. 

 

One of the original Planning Board conditions stated that all compost and amendment materials shall be 

stored inside or under a roof. LAWPCA has removed that condition and stated that any biosolids being 

temporarily stored at the facility prior to composting, land application disposal shall be managed so as not 

to produce runoff or odors capable of impacting the surrounding properties or general environment. To 

address the above requirements, they have also added that all materials shall be screened from the public 

way and abutting properties. 

 

An end-use plan was provided in the 90s that needed updates. LAWPCA has provided an updated end-use 

plan for the facility, which includes the basic steps necessary to safely close down the facility. It is 

expected at the time the facility is no longer in effect, that a formal plan is submitted to the City for 

deactivation that includes: future use or demolition of the buildings and structures, disposal of any new 

waste materials on the site including but not limited to: Sewage sludges, compost, amendment materials, 

equipment and vehicles.  

 

The condition regarding traffic was removed, this was reviewed in the 90s and upgrades were made to 

Penley Corner Road to address the concerns, no issues have been noted today. The same condition also 

made reference to LAWPCAs ability to provide adequate water supply/storage capacity to meet building 

requirements. These have also been satisfied.  

 

In the 90s, an assessment was completed that reviewed potential impacts to property values as determined 

by the Assessor at the time. There have not been any impacts to property values since the facility has been 

in operation, however, the Planning Board still has to keep that finding in there to ensure moving forward 

there will not be any impacts as it is a requirement of Site Plan/Special Exception. The Applicant 

provided a list of abutters and City Staff calculated the estimated property values from 2010 to present. 

Nearly all of the property values have increased with the exception of one that had a barn demolished 

between 2010 and 2017. 

2020 Value 2017 Value 

                                                                                                   

2010 Value 

 $38,300.00   $35,900.00   $31,100.00  

 $39,200.00   $39,200.00   $39,200.00  

 $135,400.00   $126,700.00   $131,900.00  

 $12,100.00   $11,900.00   $11,300.00  

 $401,900.00   $405,200.00   $400,300.00  

 $231,400.00   $231,400.00   $346,600.00  

 $188,000.00   $191,800.00   $196,100.00  

 $272,700.00   $274,200.00   $247,400.00  

 

LAWPCA states that over the course of many years, the facility has never received a complaint 

concerning noise from the facility. The only equipment used outside is a front-end loader, for periods of 



Page 3 of 4 

 

about one and a half hours per day, this same type of equipment is currently used in surrounding farm 

areas. The same 70dBA noise standard still applies as a light industrial zoning area under Sec. 60-1037 of 

the Ordinance today. The application makes it clear that the 70dBA noise limit will be met by the facility.  

 

LAWPCA has included in their submission an Operations and Maintenance Plan for the facility.  

 

The biggest change proposed are the odor system amendments, LAWPCA agrees to perform odor 

intensity testing at any dwelling or public road and agrees that only anaerobically digested sewage sludge 

from treatment plant and amendment materials having little or no potential to generate odors (saw dust, 

wood shavings, wood ash, spent coffee grounds) will be composted at the facility unless the proposed 

material is low in potential to produce odors and is approved in advance by the City of Auburn. 

 

The agreement wraps up with information regarding the contract and that the facility cannot be 

subcontracted or responsibility transferred without the consent of the Auburn City Council. 

 

II. DEPARTMENT REVIEW:  

b. Police – No comments received. 

c. Auburn Water and Sewer – No comments received. 

d. Fire Department – No comments received. 

e. Code Enforcement – No comments received. 

f. Engineering – No comments received. 

g. Addressing – No comments received. 

h. Airport – No comments received. 

i. NEW (Comprehensive Plan Conflict): While this proposal is not a new or revised Site 

Plan before the Planning Board, Staff wanted to get in the habit of including a new 

Comprehensive Plan section to the Staff Report per the Planning Board request at the 

August 11, 2020 meeting. It also gives the Planning Board an opportunity to revise the 

format if needed for future proposals.  

YES  

✓NO – The property is located in the Agriculture and Resource Protection Zoning District which allows 

as a Special Exception Sec.60-145(b)(#12): Processing and storage of compost and bulking agents from 

the municipal wastewater sewerage sludge facilities provided that:  

A. All compost and amendments are to be stored undercover or screened from the public 

way and abutting property as determined by the Planning Board. 

B. All federal, state and local ordinances and laws relating to the processing and storage 

of waste are complied with. 

C. An end-use plan must be filed as part of the Planning Board process. 

The Future Land Use Map designates the area as Agriculture/Rural. Page 109 of the Future Land Use 

Plan (Allowed Uses for the Agriculture/Rural District) states that the Agriculture/Rural District should 

continue to include the uses allowed in the existing AG/RP zoning district.  

 

II. PLANNING BOARD ACTION – Sec. 60-1277. – Objective. In considering a site plan, the 

Planning Board shall make findings that the development has made provisions for:  

(1) Protection of adjacent areas against detrimental or offensive uses on the site by provision 

of adequate surface water drainage, buffers against artificial and reflected light, sight, 

sound, dust and vibration; and preservation of light and air; 

(2) Convenience and safety of vehicular and pedestrian movement within the site and in 

relation to adjacent areas; 

(3) Adequacy of the methods of disposal for wastes; and 

(4) Protection of environment features on the site and in adjacent areas. 

 



Page 4 of 4 

 

Sec. 60-1336. – As conditions prerequisite to the granting of any special exceptions, the board shall 

require evidence of the following:  

(1) That the special exception sought fulfills the specific requirements, if any, set forth in the 

zoning ordinance relative to such exception. 

(2) That the special exception sought will neither create nor aggravate a traffic hazard, a fire 

hazard or any other safety hazard. 

(3) That the special exception sought will not block or hamper the master development plan 

pattern of highway circulation or of planned major public or semipublic land acquisition. 

(4) That the exception sought will not alter the essential characteristics of the neighborhood 

and will not tend to depreciate the value of property adjoining and neighboring the 

property under application. 

(5) That reasonable provisions have been made for adequate land space, lot width, lot area, 

stormwater management in accordance with section 60-1301(14), green space, driveway 

layout, road access, off-street parking, landscaping, building separation, sewage disposal, 

water supply, fire safety, and where applicable, a plan or contract for perpetual 

maintenance of all the common green space and clustered off-street parking areas to 

ensure all such areas will be maintained in a satisfactory manner. 

(6) That the standards imposed are, in all cases, at least as stringent as those elsewhere 

imposed by the city building code and by the provisions of this chapter. 

(7) That essential city services which will be required for the project are presently available 

or can be made available without disrupting the city's master development plan. 

 

III. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS – Staff recommends the Planning Board approve the new 

agreement. Suggested Condition: 

1. Upon deactivation of the facility, a plan shall be provided to the City of Auburn that includes 

future use or demolition of the buildings and structures and disposal of any new waste materials 

on the site including but not limited to: Sewage sludges, compost, amendment materials, 

equipment and vehicles.  

 

Suggested Motion: I make a motion to approve the proposed changes to the Lewiston Auburn Water 

Pollution Control Authority (LAWPCA) agreements with the City as presented in the application and 

cover letter dated August 5, 2020 located at 230 Penley Corner Road (PID: 137-032) in the Agriculture 

and Resource Protection Zoning District.  

1. Upon deactivation of the facility, a plan shall be provided to the City of Auburn that includes 

future use or demolition of the buildings and structures and disposal of any new waste materials 

on the site including but not limited to: Sewage sludges, compost, amendment materials, 

equipment and vehicles.  

 

 
__________________________ 

Megan Norwood 

City Planner II 

 



CITY OF AUBURN PLANNING BOARD 

 

APPLICATION OF THE LEWISTON-AUBURN WATER POLLUTION 

CONTROL AUTHORITY FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL AND SPECIAL 

EXCEPTIONS PERMIT TO APPROVAL OF CONTINUED OPERATION OFCONSTRUCT A MUNICIPAL WASTE 

WATER 

SLUDGE COMPOSTING FACILITY. 

 

The Planning Board approves the application of the Lewiston-Auburn Water 

Pollution Control Authority (“LAWPCA” or “Applicant”) for a Special Exceptions 

Approval and Site Plan Review Approval to continue operations under modified conditions and 

parameters under the Auburn Zoning Ordinance. After review of 

the LAWPCA Application, and after notice and hearing as required under the 

Ordinance, the Planning Board makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of 

law in support of its decision. 

 

PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

 

On February 10, 1992 LAWPCA submitted a complete written application for 

Site Plan Approval and a Special Exception Permit to construct a Municipal Waste 

Water Sludge Composting Facility on Penley Corner Road in Auburn. After 

appropriate notice, the Planning Board held a public hearing on the application on 

March 10, and continued the proceeding for additional public hearings, Board 

deliberations, and decision on the following dates: March 12, March 23, and April 2, 

1992. 

 

2 

 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPROVAL 



 

The proposed Penley Corner Road location for the sludge composting facility 

lies wholly within an area designated by the Auburn Zoning Ordinance as an 

“Agriculture and Resource Protection District.” Article 3.31 of the Auburn Zoning 

Ordinance provides that permitted uses within this zone include farms, plant and tree 

nurseries, greenhouses, the handling, storage and sale of agricultural products grown on 

the premises, livestock operations and wayside stands. Special Exception uses 

approved for the zone include sawmills, veterinary hospitals, handling, storage and sale 

of agricultural services, municipal sanitary landfills, wholesale nurseries, and municipal 

waste water sewerage sludge composting facilities. 

The Planning Board has reviewed the LAWPCA application, public hearing 

testimony and exhibits, as well as the February 27, 1992 Planning Board Report 

Submitted by Planning Board Staff and independent consultants, E.A. 

Environmental/EMCOM, Inc. Based upon this review, the Board findsfound that the 

proposed sludge composting facility willould be in harmony with the expressed intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance and with the major purposes of the Auburn Master Development 

Plan as required by Chapter 29, Article 7.2 of the Auburn Zoning Ordinance. The 

Board finds further found that  pursuant to Article 7.2 that the proposed use willould substantially serve 

the public convenience and welfare of all Auburn residents, and will not involve 

dangers to health or safety. The Board finds that in this year, 2020, the facility has operated for many 

years with little or no detrimental effect to residents in the general area of the facility.  The Board finds 

after review of the facility, its operational history, and changed circumstances since the original approval 

of the facility that a new approval for the facility is warranted.   The Board further notes that as a voting 

member of the Lewiston-Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority Board of Directors, the Auburn City 

Manager or the Manager’s designee is in a unique position to monitor the activities of the LAWPCA and 

its compost facility in the best interests of Auburn citizens.     

 

3 

The Board makes the following findings: 

The Board makes the following findings concerning the prerequisite conditions 

for Special Exception approval set forth in Article 7.2.B.1.a through g of the Zoning 



Ordinance: 

a. The proposed sludge composting facility fulfills the specific requirements 

set forth in the Zoning Ordinance for the “Processing and Storage of Compost and 

Bulking Agents” from the Municipal Waste Water Sewerage Sludge Facility, set forth 

in Section 3.31.B.2.1. The Board finds specifically that the proposed use fulfills the 

three criteria for such compost facilities: 

 

1. The site plan shows that all compost and amendment materials will 

be stored inside or under a roof. In addition, the Operations Plan 

(LAWPCA application Exhibit 18) states that there will be no 

outdoor storage. 

21. All plans presented to the Planning Board are in full compliance 

with all applicable federal, state and local ordinances. No federal 

permits are required for operation of the facility and appropriate State permits have been obtained by 

the Lewiston-Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority. However, fFederal 

and state regulations will govern use of the compost product. 

Applicant is seeking the necessary state Site Location of 

Development permit. The local ordinance provisions are satisfied 

by the project as conditioned in this decision. 

23. Applicant has demonstrated the ability to operate the facility and make a product which is beneficial 

to the community and affirms that the Lewistons-Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority will submit, 

for approval by the City, an end use plan upon the event that the facility is no longer to be 

operated..ubmitted an End-Use Plan to the Board which 

satisfies the requirements of the Ordinance. Applicant also will be 

required to submit updated End-Use Plans consistent with the 

experience at the facility pursuant to Article IX of the Siting of 

Composting Facility Agreement (“Agreement”) between the City 

of Auburn and LAWPCA. 

 

b.3. The Board fiounds that the proposed composting facility wioulld neither create 



nor aggravate a traffic hazard, a fire hazard or any other safety hazard. 

 

4. 

 

The applicant has submitted a Traffic Impact Analysis which indicates the 

current traffic levels on Route 136 and the Penley Corner Road will not be further 

aggravated by the development of this facility. Nevertheless, under the Agreement, 

LAWPCA has agreed to specific off-site improvements which will improve the 

functioning of the roadway and intersection as compared to pre-project conditions. 

At this time, the facility has not been designed to include an automatic fire 

suppression system or fire hydrant protection. Applicant will be required to provide for 

adequate well water supply or water storage capacity to meet Building Code 

requirements for fire suppression. A special condition has been added to address this 

requirement. 

No other safety hazards have been identified. 

c. The Board finds that the Special Exceptioncontinued operation of the facility under the limitations and 

modifications as  soughtproposed will not block or 

hamper the Master Development plan pattern of highway circulation or of planned 

major public or semi-public land acquisition. Neither the City of Auburn nor any 

quasi-public local entity has expressed any intention of acquiring land on or in the 

immediate vicinity of this parcel. The City is also unaware of any plans to extend or 

create new highways within the proposed development area. 

d. The Board finds that the Special Exceptionoperating facility  proposed use willhas not altered the 

essential characteristics of the neighborhood and willhas not tend to depreciatenegatively theffected 

the value of 

property adjoining and neighboring the property under application.  

 

5. 

 



The composting facility is proposed to be located in the Agriculture and 

Resource Protection District of Auburn. This District is classified as a Resource 

District rather than a Residential District, reflecting the City’s goal of maintaining its 

agricultural base to the maximum extent possible. To that end, no new residences are 

allowed in this District except those associated with substantial on-site agricultural or 

forest-based activities. This minimizes the potential for future residential use conflicts 

for the proposed sludgecompost facility. 

The proposed compost facility will consumes only a small portion of the active 

agricultural land on the Gauthier Farm. Pursuant to the Agreement between Mr. 

Gauthier and the applicant, Mr. Gauthier is obligated to continue agricultural use of the 

property as part of his life tenancy. In the event he decides to discontinue active 

agricultural use. Thus, the project will preserve the essential agriculture characteristics 

of the neighborhood. 

Based upon a report generated by the City of Auburn’s tax assessor, set forth in 

the Planning Board Report dated March 6, 1992, and testimony offered at the public 

hearing, the Planning Board finds that the proposed project will not tend to depreciate 

the value of the property adjoining and neighboring the property under application. 

 

6 

 

First, the Board finds that as conditioned in this decision, the proposed project 

will have no unreasonable net effect on the assessed value of adjoining or neighboring 

property. The tax assessor for the City of Auburn has confirmed that experience in 

other communities indicates that market prices are not affected in the long-term by this 

type of facility. He also indicated that there is no discernible difference between any 

short-term property value impacts that might be associated with such a sludge 

composting facility from those associated with a full-scale farming operation (permitted 

use) or sawmill (special exception use) in this agricultural zone . 

Second, the Board finds that, as conditioned in this decision, the proposed sludge 



composting facility will not have any unique or distinctive characteristics that would 

cause any greater short or long-term property devaluation than another municipal waste 

water sewerage sludge facility, or with other permitted or special exception uses 

allowed within the District. This project would not have any greater impact on property 

values due to odor, noise, or traffic than permitted farm activities on the same site, 

which could include sludge or manure spreading on croplands, composting, sale of 

produce at wayside stands, or even large-scale livestock operations, such as poultry or 

hog farms. The project would not have any greater property value 

 

7 

 

impact than any other special exception use approved for the zone, including sawmills 

or municipal landfills. 

e6. Reasonable provisions have been made for the criteria listed in Article 

7.2.B.1.e, including adequate lot area, drainage, road access, parking, landscaping, 

building separation, and sewerage disposal. 

The plan is deficient in a minor area involving driveway layout for fire safety as 

noted in the Fire Department’s comments. To remedy this deficiency, a special 

condition will require that the driveway be extended to include a gravel road to the 

westerly corner of the facility, consistent with Fire Department recommendations. 

A special condition has also been added to assure that an adequate water supply 

for both composting operations and fire suppression. Exhibit 9, Water Supply, of 

LAWPCA’s State Site Location of Development permit application, states that peak 

water usage is expected to be 20 gallons per minute during the weekly plant washdown. 

Testimony at the public hearing indicated that LAWPCA might face higher water 

demands if significant quantities of water had to be used in operation of the biofilter. 

LAWPCA indicated at the hearing that additional private wells on the property could 

handle the demand, but that a special storage tank might be installed for fire 

suppression water supplies. A special condition has been included to assure that fire 



suppression and operational water supplies are adequate. 

 

87. 

 

f . The standards imposed are, in all cases, at least as stringent as those 

elsewhere imposed by the Auburn Building Code and by the provisions of this Chapter. 

As indicated previously, special conditions have been imposed to assure that an 

automatic fire suppression system will be installed, supplied by an adequate water 

source, to meet the Building Code requirements. 

The Board notes that the proposed use composting complies with the Environmental 

Compliance Standards of Chapter 29, Article 5.6 of the Ordinance, specifically the 

noise and odor provisions. 

The Board finds that the Agricultural and Resource Protection District is 

properly considered a “light industrial/industrial zone” for purposes of determining the 

maximum permitted sound level under Ordinance Articles 5.6.C.3 and .4. This 

category is the most compatible with the goals and purposes of the Agriculture and 

Resource Protection District, assuring that there will be sufficient latitude to allow new 

farming activities and compatible special exception uses to be developed within the 

District. LAWPCA’s application makes clear that the 70 dBA noise limit, as modified 

by the intermittent noise provisions of 5.6.C.4, will be met by the proposed facility. Over the course of  

many years of operation, LAWPCA has never received a complaint concerning noise from the facility.   

The Board finds that the proposed project, as conditioned by this decision, and 

as limited by Article IX of the Agreement, will not have any significant or unreasonable 

odor impact on adjoining properties. A reasonable reading of Article 5.6.E, consistent 

with the goals and objectives of the 

 

98. 

 

Ordinance, leads to the conclusion that a new non-residential use must not have a 



significant or unreasonable impact on surrounding properties, even though some odors 

may from time to time be detectable at property lines. A stricter reading of these 

Ordinance provisions could halt new farm or other non-residential development 

altogether in the City, a result certainly not intended by the City Council in creating the 

ordinance standard. The Board’s reading is consistent with the odor control provisions 

of the Site Location of Development Act regulations (Department of Environmental 

Protection Regulations Chapter 373.4), the standards which the Council sought to 

satisfy in order to gain DEP approval as a delegated municipal approval authority under 

38 M.R.S.A.§489-A when the Ordinance Article 5.6 provisions were adopted. 

Therefore, properly read, the Board finds that the provisions of Article 5.6.E are 

satisfied by the strict special conditions concerning odor imposed upon the project. 

g. The central City Services which will be required for the project are 

presently available or can be made available without disrupting the City’s Master 

Development Plan. Provided that applicant supplies an acceptable alternative means of 

water supply for fire suppression, all essential City services required for the project are 

presently available to the site. 

In sum, the Planning Board finds that all criteria for approval of a Special 

Exception as set forth in Article 3.31.B.2 and 7.2.B.1.a – g have been satisfied. 

 

10 

 

SITE PLAN APPROVAL 

 

The Planning Board finds that LAWPCA also has satisfied all Site Plan Review 

criteria set forth in Article 7.1. The applicant has submitted the necessary Site Plan 

review application and supporting documents required under 7.1.D.1 and 2. Applicant 

has demonstrated that the proposed project will constitute a suitable development and 

will not result in detriment to the City, neighborhood or the environment, as required by 

Articles 7.1.A and 7.1.D.5 The Board finds further that none of the reasons for denial 



of an application listed in 7.1.D.5.a – i are applicable. The Board finds that the 

proposed projectfacility as operated and , as conditioned, fulfills all the objectives set forth in 7.1.B.1 – 4, 

as 

detailed further by the specific factual findings in the Special Exception Use section 

above. 

1. Protection of adjacent areas against detrimental uses on the site 

 

A. Surface water drainage 

The applicant LAWPCA has made provisions for the containment of surface water runoff 

by the establishment of a detention ponds. Theis detention ponds hasve been sized in 

accordance with Chapter 32 of the Auburn Ordinance and isare determined to be adequate 

to contain surface water runoff. 

 

B. Buffers against artificial and reflected light 

The facility is proposed for locatedion on 10 acres in the middle of a 116 acre site. 

All outdoor lighting is proposed to be directed down so that light and glare are not shed 

outside 

 

11 

 

of the project site. The use of oOutdoor lighting willis only be used during hours of operation 

and, therefore, areis designed not to be a detriment or nuisance to adjacent properties. 

 

C. Sight 

This site is located on the backside of a knoll located in the middle of the 

property. Locating the facility in this way and the further buffering of the building by 

the construction of a bio-filter on the street side will tend to reduce any visual impact.  Although the 

biofilter is no longer in use and has been closed and capped in compliance with Maine Department of 

Environmental Protection Rules, the closed biofilter continues to provide this visual buffering function.  



The applicant has submitted a landscape plan which shows the introduction of LAWPCA also planted 

trees and 

other vegetation which will offer provides additional site buffering. 

 

D. Sound 

The applicant has provided a noise study that indicates that there will be minimal 

increased noise levels from the proposed facility. LAWPCA has operated the facility for many years 

without noise issues.  The only equipment that will beis used 

outside is a front-end loader, for periods totaling only about one and one-half hours per 

day. This type of equipment is used currently in the surrounding farm areas. 

 

E. Dust 

There willhas not been any significant increase in dust levels due to the project, given 

the paved road and gravel area design, and prohibition against on-site amendment 

reduction. 

 

F. Vibration 

There willhas not been any significant vibration associated with the operation of the 

facility. 

 

12 

G. Preservation of Light and Air 

This criterion is applied when structures are being built in a very dense pattern, 

in order to assure that healthful conditions exist between buildings (i.e. setbacks). This 

is not a concern at this 116 acre project site. 

2. Vehicular and pedestrian movement 

The applicant has submitted a site plan which has beenwas reviewed by both the 

Police and Fire Departments. Neither Department has stated any major concerns with 

the project. A minor concern regarding the access for fire vehicles will be addressed 



through a special condition in this decision. Off-site considerations awere limited to the 

impact of the additional traffic on Penley Corner Road and Riverside Drive, and, as 

indicated previously, applicant has agreed tocompleted off-site improvements through its 

Agreement with the City of Auburn that will actually improved current road conditions. 

3. Waste disposal 

The solid waste generated at this facility will be taken care of by three methods 

of disposal: (1) All general office wastes that are generated at the facility will disposed 

of in a manner consistent with other businesses by utilizing the Mid Maine Waste 

Action Corporation’s facility on Goldthwaite Road; (2) Any debris that cannot be 

handled at the MMWAC facility will be disposed of in the City of Auburn landfill 

located on Gracelawn Road or at another licensed landfill; (3) Any residual waste water 

created at the facility is proposed to be stored in a holding tank located on the site. The 

holding tank 

 

13 

 

will be is periodically pumped and the waters taken to the LAWPCA wastewater treatment plant in 

Lewistonfacility for proper 

treatment. Domestic sanitary waste water will be is treated on site utilizing a subsurface 

waste water disposal system. 

4. Protection of the environment features on the site and in adjacent areas 

The applicant LAWPCA has taken steps to protect all environmental features on the site. 

This includes the identification and buffering of wetlands from development; the 

development and design of a detention ponds to adequately collect all surface runoff 

waters as a resulting from of the development; and the commitment to the in cooperation with Mr. 

Gauthier, has continuedance of 

farming activities on the site. Noting that the facility is proposed to be located in the 

middle of a 116 acre site, there are no environmental features on adjacent lands that have been or are 

likely to be impacted. 



Based upon these findings of fact and conclusions of law, the Planning Board 

approves the LAWPCA application for approval of Special Exception Use of the 

Penley Road site as a Municipal Waste Water Sewerage Sludge Facility under Article 

3.31.B.2, and also approves the Site Plan under Article 7.1 and 7.2, subject to the 

following special conditions: 

 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 

A. On or before May 1, 1992, LAWPCA shall submit letters to the Planning 

Board the City of Auburn and MMWAC to show that both the landfill and the 

 

14 

 

incineration plant have the capacity to accept any non-composting waste generated at 

the sludge composting facility. If the landfill and the incineration plant do not have the 

capacity to accept any non-composting waste generated at the sludge composting 

facility, LAWPCA shall submit letters from alternative disposal facilities stating that 

such disposal capacity is available. 

B. On or before July 1, 1992, LAWPCA shall submit to the Planning Board for 

its review and approval, with or without conditions, a plan demonstrating that an 

adequate water supply can be obtained for the operation and maintenance of the sludge 

composting facility, as well as the fire suppression systems required by the Building 

Code. Approval of this plan by the Planning Board shall be required before any 

building permit may be issued to the facility. 

C. LAWPCA shall design the facility in a manner consistent with the 

preliminary Plan of Operation submitted to the Planning Board in the Site Plan Review 

Application. At least 60 days prior to commencement of operations, LAWPCA shall 

submit to the Planning Board, for its review and approval, with or without conditions, a 

final Plan of Operation meeting all 



 

criteria of Article VIII, Section 1 of the Siting of Sludge Composting Facility 

Agreement between LAWPCA and the City of Auburn dated February, 1992. The 

 

15On or before September 30, 2020 LAWPCA shall submit to the Auburn City Manager for approval and 

consultation with the Planning Board, a plan of operations that will document any changes to the 

operation of the facility from its original designed operation.    

 

sludge composting facility shall be operated as described in the Plan of Operation 

approved by the Planning Board. 

D. At least 60 days prior to commencement of operations, LAWPCA shall 

submit to the Planning Board for its review and approval, with or without conditions, a 

final Marketing and Distribution Plant that includes provisions for seasonal storage of 

compost off the Gauthier Farm site, such that no compost will be stored outside the 

curing building. A minimum of six months off-site storage for compost shall be 

provided in the Plan for the period of November through April. 

E. LAWPCA shall deactivate the sludge composting facility in accordance with 

the End Use Plan dated March 13, 1992.In the event that LAWPCA decides or is required by a 

governmental entity having jurisdiction to cease operation of the facility, it shall deliver to the Auburn 

City Manager for approval by the Planning Board, a plan for deactivation of the facility.  The plan will 

include future use or demolition of the buildings and structures, disposal of any waste materials on the 

site including but not limited to sewerage sludges, compost, amendment materials, equipment and 

vehicles.    

F.  F. LAWPCA shall conduct any emergency backup procedures at the facility in 

accordance with the Emergency Backup Disposal Plan submitted to the Planning Board 

in this application. 

G. LAWPCA shall be responsible for the construction of all off-site 

improvements as outlined in Article VIII of the Agreement between LAWPCA and the 

City of Auburn. 

H. Prior to any construction of the sludge composting facility, LAWPCA shall 

design the driveway at the sludge composting facility to include a gravel driveway to 



the westerly-most corner of the curing building. Said driveway shall be approved by the 

Auburn Fire Chief. 

I. Prior to any construction of the sludge composting facility, LAWPCA shall 

submit design details to the Planning Board for its review and approval, with or without 

 

16 

 

condition, for the detention pond’s emergency spillway and an explanation as to how 

the sedimentation trap will function during the construction period. 

J. LAWPCA shall ensure that the design of the curing building provides for 40 

days detention time at a maximum depth of eight feet. These are design requirements 

only, and shall not control actual operations. The curing building shall be equipped 

with an aeration system to provide negative aeration for all curing compost, consistent 

with the requirements of Article IX of the Agreement. Exhaust from the aeration 

system shall be treated in the biolfilter. 

K. Prior to commencement of operations, LAWPCA shall install a “Stop” sign 

at the intersection of the sludge composting facility access road and Penley’s Corner 

Road. 

LG. No amendment preparation (e.g. size reduction or metal separation) shall take 

place at the sludge composting facility.  All amendment material at the sludge 

composting facility, including rejected materials, shall be stored inside the building. Any biosolids being 

temporarily stored at the facility prior to composting, land application or disposal shall be managed so 

as not to produce runoff or odors capable of impacting the surrounding properties or general 

environment, all materials shall be screened from the public way and abutting properties.    

M.H. The granting of this approval is dependent upon and limited to compliance 

with the proposals, plans and oral statements as submitted by or on behalf of LAWPCA 

to the Auburn City Council and the Auburn Planning Board. 

NI. LAWPCA shall comply with the Agreement and all applicable federal, state, 

and local laws and requirements, including, but not limited to, licenses, permits, 

authorizations, conditions, agreements, and orders prior to or during construction and 



operation. 

 

17 

 

O. If either construction of the sludge composting facility is not completed or 

operation of the sludge composting facility has not begun within five years from the 

date approval is granted by the Planning Board, the board may reexamine its approval 

and impose additional terms or conditions or prescribe other necessary corrective action 

to respond to changes in circumstances which may have occurred during the five-year 

period. 

P. LAWPCA shall pay the reasonable costs incurred by the City of Auburn or 

its Planning Board not to exceed $15,000 to retain a consultant of its choice to advise 

the City or Board during the review, design, and construction of the proposed bio-filter 

and associated air handling system. 

QJ. All trucks carrying sludge, amendment, or end product to and from the 

facility shall be covered and adequately sealed at all times traveling through the City of 

Auburn. 

RK. LAWPCA shall ensure that an odor control system is installed at the Facility 

which meets the following performance standards. The facility shall operate in 

compliance with the following performance standards at all times: 

 

18 

 

1. LAWPCA shall ensure that odor intensity measured at any dwelling or 

any public road shall not be more than 1.0 unit higher than background levels if the 

odor is characteristic of sludge, compost or the composting process and attributable to 

the composting operation. Odor intensity shall be measured on the butanol scale in 

accordance with ASTM E 544. 

 



2. The odor control system discharge shall have an odor concentration 

not exceeding 100 units at ED50 as determined in accordance with ASTM E 679. All 

air spaces where sludge or non-finished compost is stored, processed, transported or 

otherwise handled shall be considered air streams required to undergo odor control 

treatment. Air spaces where bulking agents are stored, processed, transported or 

otherwise handled, may be required to undergo odor control treatment. 

Before the facility is constructed, LAWPCA will ensure that an 

 

independent air emissions study is conducted at the site to establish baseline odor levels 

and to develop odor dispersion modeling. Background odor intensities shall be 

measured by the butanol scale at two time periods: at the time of spring sludge 

spreading when background odor intensity is highest; and at mid-winter when odor 

intensity is minimum. During both time periods, odor intensity shall be measured 

during conditions of low atmospheric dispersion. 

 

19 

 

Prior to the Commencement Date of Operations, a period of full scale 

operations, not to exceed sixty days, shall be conducted at the Facility to ensure that 

ED50 maximum value of 

 

100 is achieved under normal operating procedures through use of the odor control 

system. LAWPCA must demonstrate to the Planning Board, through testing, that the 

ED50 maximum value of 100 is, and will continue to be, attained when the odor control 

system is functioning. The Commencement Date of Operations shall not occur until the 

Planning Board, after reviewing the demonstration made by LAWPCA, has approved 

operation of the odor control system, which approval shall not be unreasonably 

withheld. 

 



After the Commencement Date of Operations, the odor control system 

discharge shall be monitored annually during the month of July using an odor panel 

(ASTM E 679).  During periods of operation, at the request of the Auburn City Manager or the Auburn 

Planning  

ABoard, LAWPCA agrees to perform dditional tests using either odor units at the point of discharge 

(ASTM # 679) or odor intensity testing at any dwelling or public road per (ASTM E 544.) may be 

requested at other times by the City Manager, or a City Councilor provided that the sum 

of all additional tests shall not exceed 12 per year, to ascertain whether the odor levels 

 

20 

 

as specified in this Article, have been achieved. The City Manager or City Councilor 

shall not unreasonably request additional odor monitoring. 

Recognizing the odor potential of any composting operation, LAWPCA agrees that only anaerobically 

digested sewage sludge from its treatment plant and amendment materials having little or no potentiaql 

to generate odors ( such as sawdust, wood shavings, wood ash and spent coffee grounds) will be 

composted at the facility unless material that is low in potential to produce odors and is approved in 

advance by the City of Auburn.   

 

AAll studies, tests and monitoring required by this Article shall be 

conducted by independent laboratories agreed upon by LAWPCA and the City 

Manager. LAWPCA shall submit the results of any studies and testing required under 

this Article to the City Manager and the City Council. If the standards for odor control 

referred to in this Article are violated, LAWPCA will have 72 hours to comply and if 

unable to do so, will shut 

 

down operations and cease bringing amendments to the site until such time as it can 

comply. If the facility must shut down more than 3 times in any 12- month period, it 

will remain shut down until such time as it can comply. If the facility must shut down 

more than 3 times in any 12- month period, it will remain shut down until such time as 



LAWPCA demonstrates, to the satisfaction of the City Council, that continued 

operation of the Facility will not violate such odor control standards. In the event that 

the facility must be shut down due to odors, or for some other reason under agreement 

between the City of Auburn and LAWPCA, LAWPCA shall have 7 30 days to complete 

removal of compost material and sludge unless an alternative schedule is agreed upon 

by the City Manager and LAWPCA in order to minimize odor impacts. 

S. LAWPCA shall create a special board to advise LAWPCA with respect to 

noise, odor or any other operational issues of concern, as need requires. This board 

 

21 

 

shall consist of at least two members from the neighborhood, two members from the 

Planning Board, and one City Councilor. 

T. All road improvements along the Penley Corner Road shall be undertaken in 

such a way so as minimize disturbance of the property identified as the “Old School 

House”, now the Charest residence. 

2. LAWPCA shall not subcontract the operation of the Facility, or otherwise transfer 

responsibility for operating the Facility, without obtaining the consent of the Auburn City 

Council, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.   If  LAWPCA desires to transfer 

operating responsibilities for the Facility, such transfer shall be subject to the Auburn City 

Council finding, prior to the transfer, that the proposed operator has adequate financial capacity 

to ensure the Facility will be operated in full compliance with this Agreement and to secure the 

payment of any cost or damage arising out of noncompliance.  Such financial assurance may but 

is not required to include, without limitation and subject to the approval of the Auburn City 

Council, a performance bond, letter of credit or other form of liquid, third-party credit 

enhancement. 



Approval by the Auburn City Council for the transfer shall also be conditioned upon the 

conclusion of a separate agreement between the City and LAWPCA regarding financial 

assurance, including but not limited to: (1) the amount and type of financial assurance 

mechanism; (2) the City’s rights to receive payment under the mechanism; (3) actions by the 

private contractor which trigger the City’s right to recover under the mechanism; and, (4) the 

period of time for which approval of the transfer is granted by the Auburn City Council.  

Notwithstanding the transfer of operating responsibilities, LAWPCA acknowledges that 

it retains responsibility for operation of the Facility and for full compliance with this Agreement.  

 

3. LAWPCA agrees that the Facility shall be operated in compliance with all state and 

federal laws and regulations and local ordinances, including the Environmental Performance 

Standards adopted by the City, and will not become a private or public nuisance as a result of 

noise, odor, fumes or otherwise.  LAWPCA also agrees that the Facility shall be operated in such 

a manner that it will not violate any state, federal, or local health standard. 

 

4. LAWPCA agrees that the Facility will be maintained in good repair including provision 

for an adequate reserve of any and all spare and replacement parts such that the Facility will be 

operated in accordance with the Agreement.  The City shall have the right to enter the Site at 

reasonable times for the purpose of assuring that LAWPCA is complying with the terms of this 

Agreement.  

5. LAWPCA shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City and its respective officials, agents 

and employees (the “City employees”) from and against all losses, costs, damages and expenses 

(including reasonable attorneys’ fees) incurred by the City or the City employees arising out of any claim, 

action, demand or liability threatened or asserted against the City or the City employees relating in any 

way to the Facility including, without limitation, the design, construction,  maintenance or operation of 



the Facility or the transportation of the Sludge, the Bulking Agents or the composted material. LAWPCA 

specifically agrees to defend and indemnify the City and the City employees from any claims brought 

against them by employees of LAWPCA or employees of any subcontractor of LAWPCA for 

injuries allegedly suffered during the course of their employment.  Provided, nevertheless, that to 

the extent such injury is caused by any willful or negligent act or omission by the City, 

LAWPCA shall have a right of contribution against the City 

 

 BINDING EFFECT 

 This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties to this 

Agreement and their respective successors and assigns.  

 

OTHER DOCUMENTS 

 Each party promises and agrees to execute and deliver any instruments and to perform 

any acts which may be necessary or reasonably required in order to give full effect to this 

Agreement.  

 

SEVERABILITY 

 In the event any covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid 

or unenforceable by a final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, or by any other 

tribunal, board, or other entity, the decision of which is binding upon the parties and which 

becomes final, such invalidity or unenforceability shall in no way affect any of the other 

covenants, conditions or provisions of this Agreement.  

 

 



APPLICABLE LAW 

 The laws of the State of Maine shall govern the validity, interpretation, and performance 

of this Agreement. 

 

AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT 

 No amendment to this Agreement may be made unless it is in writing and signed by both 

parties.  

 

NONDISCRIMINATION 

 The parties agree that the terms of this Agreement will be performed in a manner which 

allows equal opportunity and which shall not discriminate on the basis of age, race, religion, 

color, creed, sex, sexual preference, disability, financial status or national origin: (a) in the 

persons served or in the manner of service; or (b) in the hiring, assignment, promotion, salary 

determination or other conditions of employment.  

 

NOTICE 

 All notices required or permitted to be given or furnished under this Agreement by either 

party to the other shall be in writing and shall be deemed sufficiently given and served upon the 

other party if hand delivered or sent postage prepaid, addressed as follows: if to the City: City 

Manager, 60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine 04210; if to LAWPCA:  Superintendent, P.O. Box 

1928, Lewiston, Maine 04241.  



 Said notice shall be deemed given when mailed.  By notice given in conformity with this 

article, each party shall have the right, from time to time, to designate a different person or 

address to whom or to which notice shall be given.  

 

ARBITRATION 

Any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be resolved by arbitration in accordance 

with the rules of the American Arbitration Association.  The arbitration proceeding shall be held 

in Auburn, Maine and each party shall pay its own costs of the proceeding plus one half the costs 

and charges of the arbitrators. 

 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the 

subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior understandings and Agreements between the 

parties, and may be altered or amended only by a writing signed by the parties.  

 

 

DATED: APRIL 3, 1992 __________________________ 

Robert Hayes, Chairman 

Auburn Planning Board 

 



Lewiston Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority 

Composting Facility End Use Plan 

 

The facility will be closed in a manner that minimizes the need for further maintenance; and so that the 

facility will not pollute any waters of the state, contaminate the ambient air, constitute a hazard to 

health or welfare, or create a nuisance. All compost, wastes, secondary materials, leachate, residue, 

including compost screenings, will be removed from the facility. All site soils will be stabilized in 

accordance with Maine erosion and sediment control best management practices. The facility structures 

and equipment will be cleaned. Additionally, the below will continue to be specifically done: 

 Lock all doors 

 Post emergency contact phone numbers on office door 

 Remove all trash 

 Remove all tools and mobile equipment 

 Shut off water and drain lines 

 Shut off all electrical circuits with the exception of essential circuits for interior and exterior 

lighting 

 Pump out septic tank 

 Pump out holding tank 

 Maintain water tanks for fire fighting  

 Facility inspections a minimum 1 time per week 

 Close and lock access gate 

 Plow to ensure fire department access 

 Mow grounds 

 Remove all paints, solvents, fuels 

 Shut off and lock out propane tanks 

 Comply with all ME DEP requirements such as groundwater monitoring, leachate pumping, 

biofilter mowing, biofilter inspections 

 Comply with all State and Local ordinances 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three                             Katherine E. Boss, At Large 
Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 101-09082020 
 
ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council hereby adopts the proposed amendments to the 
Lewiston-Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority (LAWPCA) agreement for continued 
operation of a municipal wastewater sludge composting facility located at 230 Penley Corner 
Road in Auburn, Maine. The continued operation shall be under one agreement that merges 
elements of the original City Council agreement from April 3, 1992 into the Planning Board 
approval from February 27, 1992 and allows the facility to operate under the conditions of one 
City document.  



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   September 8, 2020  Order: 102-09082020 
 
Author:  Dan Goyette, Director of Public Works 
 

Subject:  Road Discontinuance 
 
Information:   
A petition from David C. Haines was submitted to discontinue a portion of Butler Hill Road.  Mr. Haines is the sole owner 
of all land abutting the sections of the Butler Hill Road being discontinued.  He has also waived any claim for damages as 
part of the discontinuance.  An easement has also been granted to the City in order to construct a turn-around for City 
equipment. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:   
There will be a minimal cost to the City in order to erect signs and construct a turn-around.  There will be a savings in 
maintenance, as there will be virtually no traffic on the road after the closure so grading and winter maintenance will be 
decreased. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Add action to a regular meeting for a vote 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Presented at the 8/17/2020 City Council Workshop. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  
 

Attachments: Easement, Order, Map and Road Status 
 
 



213-002

193-008

213-014

233-006

213-010

233-024

205-004

233-022

213-017

213-005

213-019

233-015
233-022-001

233-018

213-011

213-007

233-016

233-001

213-017-000-002
213-017-000-001

233-011

233-023

233-019

213-021

233-002

193-009

204-012

213-006

233-010

245-001

213-009

253-003

233-007

253-002

193-012 194-004193-003

213-004

193-010 205-002

233-021

213-001

233-008

233-013

213-008

213-018

233-012

213-022

233-003

213-003

193-011193-004 204-013

213-012

233-017

204-011

233-005

253-004

233-014

204-007

233-004

193-005

213-015

193-006

233-020

213-016

233-009

193-007

Butler Hill Road Discontinuance

1,500 0 1,500750 Feet 1 inch = 1000 feet

David C. Haines residence

Portion in Minot

Mi
no

t
Au

bu
rn

Municipal Boundary

SMALL RD

HATCH RD

MINE RD

BUTLER HILL RD

Woodman
Hill

Rd

Butler
Hill

Rd

Route 121 &
11

MINOT AV

GARFIELD RD

43'+/-

30.00' 56.00'

33'+/-Turnaround Easement

N/F David C. Haines
        233-006

N/F Constance Therese Boies
              233-007

N/F David C. Haines
        213-002

N/F Robert L. Pelletier
             233-005

Section of Butler Hill Road
   to be discontinued 

100'

INSERT Scale 1" = 100'

See Insert
BUTLER HILL

RD
Sections of Butler Hill Road
      to be discontinued



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three                             Katherine E. Boss, At Large 
Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 102-09082020 
 

 
ORDERED, that the Municipal Officers of the City of Auburn hereby order the discontinuance of 
those portions of the Butler Hill Road in Auburn, as described herein, both as a town way and a 
public easement. 
 
Beginning at a point on the centerline of the Butler Hill Road, said point being located one 
hundred (100) feet southwesterly, as measured along said centerline, from where the 
northeasterly boundary line of property of David C. Haines as described in Book 1727, Page 223 
of the Androscoggin County Registry of Deeds, crosses Butler Hill Road; thence from the point 
of beginning, running southwesterly and southerly along the centerline of said Butler Hill Road, 
crossing and then re-crossing the Auburn/Minot Municipal Boundary, approximately three 
thousand two hundred sixty (3,260) feet to the intersection with the most southerly crossing of 
the Auburn/Minot Municipal Boundary, near the residence of David C. Haines.    
 
Having given best practicable notice to David C. Haines, the sole owner of all land abutting the 
sections of the Butler Hill Road being discontinued, and as he has waived any claim for 
damages, we further order damages in the amount of $0.00.  

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   September 8, 2020  Order: 103-09082020 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  Appointing two City Councilor’s to participate in the work group to create a Request for Proposal (RFP) study of 
Lake Auburn  
 
Information:  The City Manager and the Water District Superintendent presented to the city council a proposal to 
develop a work group consisting of two city councilors, two water district trustees, and support staff to create a Request 
For Proposal (RFP) for a study that will have the following outcomes, as it pertains to impact:  
 
1. Economically  
2. Environmentally  
3. Regulatory  
4. Community  
 
In 2013, a regulatory RFP was created in response to the 2011 Comprehensive Plan Objective A.1.1.2: Strategy A.1.2.c 
and A.1.4.c. The new RFP will expand on the 2013 RFP to include the impacts noted above.  
 
Proposed timeline:  
 
• September 8th – city council appoints representatives along with the AWD Trustees  
• October 19th – the workgroup will present to the City Council the RFP for approval  
• November 2nd – council will adopt the RFP  
• November and December – the workgroup will review and interview respondents   
• January 4, 2021 – the city council will vote to accept the workgroup recommendation  
 
Councilor Carrier has submitted an email expressing his interest in serving on this work group. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:   
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Appoint two City Councilor’s  

 
Previous Meetings and History: Water District Superintendent, Sid Hazelton and City Manager Phil Crowell presented 
this proposal during the 8/17/2020 City Council workshop. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:    
 

Attachments:  
 



From: Phil Crowell
To: Susan Clements-Dallaire
Subject: FW: interest in committees
Date: Thursday, August 20, 2020 10:47:20 AM
Attachments: image001.png

 
 

 
From: Brian Carrier (Council) <bcarrier@auburnmaine.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 4:48 PM
To: AuburnElectedOfficials <AuburnElectedOfficials@auburnmaine.gov>
Cc: Phil Crowell <pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov>; Brian Wood <bwood@auburnmaine.gov>
Subject: interest in committees
 
Mayor and Councilors,Stu7dy
 
I am writing to submit my name for consideration for either the Comprehensive Plan Update
Committee, or for the Lake Auburn ad hoc committee. Having served on the Zoning Board of Appeals,
the Planning Board, and the Mayors ad hoc committee on Agriculture I believe I have knowledge that
could be beneficial in serving on the either of those committees.
 
Thank you for the consideration
Brian

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=4C526CB5A9124962994918A3DB350E0D-PHIL CROWEL
mailto:sdallaire@auburnmaine.gov



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three                             Katherine E. Boss, At Large 
Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 103-09082020 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following two Councilors to participate on the 
Request for Proposal (RFP) study of Lake Auburn. 
 

1. ____________________________________ 
 

2. ____________________________________ 
 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   September 8, 2020 Order: 104-09082020 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  Appointing two City Councilors to serve on the Comprehensive Plan Ad-hoc Committee 
 
Information: The Planning Board met on 8/11/2020 and they discussed the Comprehensive Plan update process. This 
was reviewed and a memo was provided to the City Council during the 8/17/2020 Council meeting. As part of the 
Comprehensive Plan update process, the Planning Board is recommending the creation of a Comprehensive Plan Ad-hoc 
Committee. The proposal is to have two Councilors serve on that Committee. Councilors Carrier, MacLeod, and Boss 
have all submitted emails to the City Manager expressing their interest in serving on this Ad-hoc Committee. 
   

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Appoint two Councilors to serve on the Committee.  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Review and memo provided at the 8/17/2020 Council meeting during communications. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  
 

Attachments:  
 
 



From: Phil Crowell
To: Susan Clements-Dallaire
Subject: FW: interest in committees
Date: Thursday, August 20, 2020 10:47:20 AM
Attachments: image001.png

 
 

 
From: Brian Carrier (Council) <bcarrier@auburnmaine.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 4:48 PM
To: AuburnElectedOfficials <AuburnElectedOfficials@auburnmaine.gov>
Cc: Phil Crowell <pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov>; Brian Wood <bwood@auburnmaine.gov>
Subject: interest in committees
 
Mayor and Councilors,Stu7dy
 
I am writing to submit my name for consideration for either the Comprehensive Plan Update
Committee, or for the Lake Auburn ad hoc committee. Having served on the Zoning Board of Appeals,
the Planning Board, and the Mayors ad hoc committee on Agriculture I believe I have knowledge that
could be beneficial in serving on the either of those committees.
 
Thank you for the consideration
Brian

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=4C526CB5A9124962994918A3DB350E0D-PHIL CROWEL
mailto:sdallaire@auburnmaine.gov



From: Phil Crowell
To: Susan Clements-Dallaire
Subject: FW: Comprehensive Plan Update Committee - Letter of Interest
Date: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 2:18:48 PM
Attachments: image001.png

 
 

 
From: Katherine Boss (Council) <kboss@auburnmaine.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 11:21 AM
To: AuburnElectedOfficials <AuburnElectedOfficials@auburnmaine.gov>
Cc: Phil Crowell <pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov>; Brian Wood <bwood@auburnmaine.gov>
Subject: Comprehensive Plan Update Committee - Letter of Interest
 
Mayor & Councilors,
 
I am writing to submit my name for consideration for the Comprehensive Plan Update
Committee. As a former member of the Planning Board, my experience in understanding
Auburn's zoning would be beneficial to this Committee, given that many Comp Plan updates are
focused on our zoning, Future Land Use Map, and potential expansion of Form Based Code.
 
Best,
Katie
 
Katie Boss, MPH
City Councilor At-Large
207-370-4683
 
The city of Auburn is subject to statutes relating to public records. Email sent to or received from this address are
subject to these laws. Senders and receivers of City email should presume that messages are subject to release.

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=4C526CB5A9124962994918A3DB350E0D-PHIL CROWEL
mailto:sdallaire@auburnmaine.gov



From: Phil Crowell
To: Susan Clements-Dallaire
Subject: FW: Comp Plan Committee
Date: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 2:19:01 PM
Attachments: image001.png

 
 

 
From: Tim Macleod (Council) <tmacleod@auburnmaine.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 12:17 PM
To: AuburnElectedOfficials <AuburnElectedOfficials@auburnmaine.gov>
Cc: Phil Crowell <pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov>; Brian Wood <bwood@auburnmaine.gov>
Subject: Comp Plan Committee
 
Mayor and Councilors,
 
I would like to help with the comprehensive plan update committee. I am excited to get
historical views to see how far we have come and help guide the direction the city could go.
 
-Tim
 
The City of Auburn is subject to statutes relating to public records. Email sent or received by City employees are subject to these laws.
Senders and receivers of City email should presume that messages are subject to release.
 

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=4C526CB5A9124962994918A3DB350E0D-PHIL CROWEL
mailto:sdallaire@auburnmaine.gov



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three                             Katherine E. Boss, At Large 
Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 104-09082020 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following two Councilors to serve on the 
Comprehensive Plan Ad-hoc Committee. 
 

1. ____________________________________ 
 

2. ____________________________________ 
 



 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   September 8, 2020 
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Economic Development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council 
must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time 
that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the 
categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted 

in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive session 

if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, 

settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional responsibility 
clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at 
a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 

between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 
examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 

1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  
 


	0  Agenda 09-08-2020
	1  CC Info Sheet Comprehensive Plan Update 08.17.20
	1a  ADAPT Plan references in Comp Plan
	1b  2020 Comprehensive Plan Committee
	2  Info Sheet Charter Review
	3  Info Sheet Body Camera Discussion
	4  Info Sheet - AFG grant 09082020
	4a  Order 99-09082020 Firefighter Grant
	5  Minutes 8-17-2020
	5a  Minutes 8-17-2020  2
	5b  GNG Program Update 9.2
	5c  Elections  Voting Hub
	6  Info Sheet   Martindale
	6  Order 100-09082020 Martindale Liq Lic
	6  Public notice Liquor License Martindale
	6a  Martindale Applications
	7  Info sheet LAWPCA
	7a LAWPCA PB memo
	7b  LAWPCA  PLANNING BOARD trk changes August 2020 (002) with requested changes added
	7d  Lewiston Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority CF End Use Plan
	7e  Order 101-09082020- LAWPCA
	8  Info sheet Butler Hill
	8a  Butler Hill Rd Discontinuance
	8b  Order 102-09082020 Butler Hill Rd Discont
	9  Info Sheet - Appt CC to RFP Study
	9b  Brian Carrier
	9b  Order 103-09082020 Appt to RFP Study
	10  Info Sheet - Appt CC to Comp Plan Review
	10a  Brian Carrier
	10b  Katie Boss
	10c  Tim MacLeod
	10d  Order 104-09082020 Appt to Comp Pln Rev
	11  Executive Session Info Sheet 

